COLLEGE GREENS SWIM AND RACQUET CLUB POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

Approved by CGSRC Board on October 16, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CGSRC MEMBERSHIP	1
CGSRC Members	1
Household or Membership Changes	1
Certificates	1
Transfer of Membership	2
Membership Status Changes - Cancellation, Inactivation, and Reactivations	2
Cancelling Membership.	2
Inactive Membership Request.	2
Reactivating Membership Within 12 Months	2
Reactivating Membership After 12 Months.	2
Dues and Fees	2
Volunteer Hours and Dues	3
Honorary Members	3
Wait List	3
GUEST POLICY	3
Guest Fees	4
CGSRC Release of Liability	4
CGSRC SEASONS AND HOURS	4
Swim Meet Days	4
Early Closing and Extended Hours	4
GROUNDS AND POOL RULES	5
Grounds Rules	5
Snack Bar	5
Pool Rules	6
Diving Board Rules	6
Kid Swim and Adult Swim	7
Clubhouse Rules	7
Barbeque Area	7
Volleyball Sand Court	8
Play Structure, Swings, Sport Court, and Horseshoes	8
Tennis Court Rules	8
SWIM LESSONS	9

CGSRC-Offered Swim Lessons	9
Private Lessons	9
CGSRC RENTALS AND PARTIES	9
Guidelines, Requirements and Limitations on Social Events	9
School Rentals	10
CGSRC-Sponsored Events	10
CGSRC BOARD AND CLUB MANAGEMENT	11
Board Member Eligibility, Terms, and Member Voting Rights	11
Board Meetings	11
Conflicts of Interest	11
Chain of Command	11
Board Positions and Responsibilities	11
CGSRC Financial and Operations	13
Board Approval of Purchases	14
Loans and Debt	14
Insurance	14
Emergency Repairs	14
Garbage Pick Up	14
Vendors	14
CGSRC EMPLOYEES	15
COLLEGE GREENS GATOR SWIM TEAM	15
CGSRC Member Swimmer Eligibility	15
Non-CGSRC Member Swimmer Eligibility	16
Authorization and Conditions to Use Pool and Facilities	16
Swim Practice	16
Swim Meets	17
Fall and Spring Swim Clinics	17
Snack Bar and Barbecue	17
ADDENDIV A EVDENICE DEIMOLIDSEMENT EODM	10

This CGSRC Policy and Procedures Manual identifies the collective policies and procedures of College Greens Swim and Racquet Club (CGSRC) and is complementary to the CGSRC Bylaws and the CGSRC Employee Handbook. The sources for these policies are the CGSRC Bylaws (2016 and previous), CGSRC Board Minutes, CGSRC resolutions and forms, and the 1995 CGSRC policy and procedure handbook.

This manual will be made available on the CGSRC website and will be updated as needed by the CGSRC Board.

CGSRC MEMBERSHIP

CGSRC Members

CGSRC is organized with members of individuals and families. The individual member or primary family member must be 18 years or age or older.

"Family" is defined as a group of individuals living in a household who are related by marriage, domestic partnership, blood or adoption.

No individual or family shall hold more than one membership in CGSRC.

Membership cannot be shared amongst two or more families or households.

The CGSRC Board may immediately suspend entry privileges of any person who threatens the safety of members and/or their guests.

Household or Membership Changes

Members need to contact the Membership Director with any changes of information including family members eligible to be on their membership, phone number, address, email address, etc.

In the event of a divorce or the termination of a domestic partnership, the spouses/partners shall decide who shall maintain the CGSRC membership and notify the Membership Director. The former spouse/partner who did not maintain their membership may apply for his/her own membership or be added to the membership wait list.

If requested by CGSRC, a copy of a certified settlement agreement or court order regarding who is entitled to the membership shall be provided.

Divorcees applying for a new individual membership do not receive a membership fee discount.

Certificates

Certain CGSRC members of long standing were issued "certificates" which had an express or implied monetary value. Members in possession of these certifications may redeem them upon leaving membership in CGSRC for the dollar amount on the face of the certificate, or where no amount is stated for \$500.

A CGSRC Certificate Holder's membership may not be transferred to another person without the prior approval of the Board. Any approved membership transfer shall require the forfeiture of the certificate.

Transfer of Membership

A membership, including a CGSRC Certificate Holder's membership, may not be transferred to another person without the prior approval of the Board.

When a membership is approved to be transferred to another party, including to family members, the previous membership years shall not apply and the new member is required to fulfill volunteer requirements.

Membership Status Changes - Cancellation, Inactivation, and Reactivations

Cancelling Membership. A member may cancel their membership at any time by submitting a written request (mail or email) to the Membership Director. Cancellation requests require a 30-day notice prior to becoming effective. After the 30-day period and the membership is cancelled by the Membership Director, all obligations for dues shall cease and all membership privileges shall be suspended.

Inactive Membership Request. A member in good standing may inactivate their membership by submitting a written request (mail or email) to the Membership Director. Inactive status requests require a 30-day notice prior to becoming effective. After the 30-day period and the membership is deemed inactive by the Membership Director, all obligations for dues shall cease and all membership privileges shall be suspended.

Reactivating Membership Within 12 Months. Memberships may be reactivated within 12 months of an inactivation request with full payment of all past membership dues, volunteer deposits, and late fees. If a waiting list exists, the individual or family will be placed at the top of the waiting list.

Reactivating Membership After 12 Months. Memberships may be reactivated beyond 12 months of inactivity without requirement of any past dues. If a waiting list exists, the household will be placed at the end of the waiting list and the initiation fee will be waived.

Dues and Fees

Pursuant to the CGSRC Bylaws, any dues, fees, and assessments are set by the CGSRC Board. Increases in membership dues requires a vote of membership.

Dues, fees, assessments as of September 15, 2017 are as follows:

• Membership dues: \$55 per month or \$605 per year

• Initiation fee: \$500

• Annual volunteer deposit: \$100

• Late fees: To be determined by the CGSRC Board

• Guest Fees: \$5 for adults and \$3 for minors

Volunteer Hours and Dues

CGSRC requires an annual volunteer deposit check to be provided to the Board Treasurer by opening day. If volunteer deposit checks are not submitted by opening day, the CGSRC Board may suspend membership privileges.

Volunteer checks will be destroyed (or returned if requested) upon completion of four (4) hours of volunteer service at or for CGSRC. Volunteer actions to fulfill this requirement must be approved by the CGSRC Board.

If volunteer hours are not completed by November 1, volunteer deposits will be forfeited and checks cashed.

Being a Director of the CGSRC Board and/or a member of the College Greens Swim Team Advisory Committee qualifies as volunteer service to the club and a volunteer deposit check is not required.

For members with ten or more years of membership, neither a volunteer deposit nor four hours of service are required.

Honorary Members

Honorary members do not pay membership dues and do not count towards the overall membership count. These special memberships cannot be transferred.

Honorary members include the founding member Gloria Zielke and the President of the College Glen Neighborhood Association.

Wait List

The CGSRC Board shall maintain a waiting list of individuals/families interested in becoming CGSRC members.

The wait list shall be kept unpublished.

GUEST POLICY

Members in good standing are allowed to bring up to 10 guests to CGSRC. On Saturdays and Sundays during the summer season, members are allowed to bring up to 4 guests. If a member wishes to bring more guests into CGSRC, prior permission of the Social Director or CGSRC Board is required.

All guests must accompany a member, pay the appropriate fees, fill out or have on file a release of liability, abide by all CGSRC rules and policies, and leave when the CGSRC member leaves.

Private paid camps, workshops, or lessons at CGSRC are not covered by the Guest Policy and need to have prior approval of the CGSRC Board.

The CGSRC Board may limit social or club events to only CGSRC members.

The CGSRC Board may immediately suspend entry privileges of any person who threatens the safety of members and/or their guests.

Guest Fees

Guest fees are \$5 for adults and \$3 for minors.

Members' adult children (over the age of 25 and/or not living in the household) and grandchildren are considered guests and must pay guest fees.

Guests visiting for more than 7-days may be entitled to a reduced rate upon prior approval of the Membership Director.

The following exemptions apply to guest fees:

- Grandparents of members' children (i.e. members' parents).
- Care givers/baby sitters when they bring members' children. The member needs to submit the caregivers name to the Membership Director so they are on the account. If the caregiver is a minor and not a member of the CGSRC, a liability waiver must be signed by their parent/guardian.
- Mail persons and other service people delivering or working briefly at CGSRC

CGSRC Release of Liability

A CGSRC Release of Liability is required to be filled out for all guests – swimmers and non-swimmers, guest fee required or exempt. If the guest is a minor, a parent/guardian's signature and the name of a person to contact in case of an emergency are required.

CGSRC SFASONS AND HOURS

The CGSRC pool and facilities is typically open to members and their guests during summer and part of spring and fall. It is typically not open during winter and part of spring and fall except for pre-arranged rentals, College Greens Swim Team clinics, and club sponsored events.

The CGSRC Board annually establishes the calendar and hours of operation. The months and hours of operation will be posted on the CGSRC website and will generally align with local school schedules.

Swim Meet Days

The pool will open at 2:00 pm on the Saturdays that the CG Swim Team has home swim meets at CGSRC. Please refer to the CGSRC or CGST website for specific dates.

Early Closing and Extended Hours

The CGSRC Board or Pool Manager may close CGSRC or CGSRC pools early because of health and safety concerns, absence of members, inclement weather, or power failure.

CGSRC may remain open past the published closing times at the discretion of the CGSRC Board. Extended hours will depend on safety, weather, and the availability of staff.

GROUNDS AND POOL RULES

The pools and grounds are maintained to be safe, clean, and hazard-free for the enjoyment of CGSRC members and their guests.

All members must sign in either individually or as a family. Every member must be verified each time he/she signs in.

Fighting, kicking, spitting, physical or verbal abuse, bullying, use of racial slurs, or use of offensive words are not allowed at any time at CGSRC. The pool manager or head lifeguard on duty may ask people violating this rule to leave the CGSRC and will notify the CGSRC Board of such incidences. The CGSRC Board may take further actions including membership suspension or cancellation.

The small pool, also known as the "kiddie pool", is for the enjoyment of smaller children and non-swimmers. It is not a station for lifeguards and is limited to children 6 and under with an accompanying adult in the water.

CGSRC defines a "non-swimmer" as an individual that is unable to move through the water with his/her head out of the water and without touching the pool bottom or sides. Non-swimmers are not allowed in the main pool without personal supervision (the lifeguards on duty do not count as personal supervision). Supervision must be provided by a responsible adult in the pool and within arm's reach.

The CGSRC Lifeguards on duty may temporarily expel any member or non-member from use of the pools or diving boards due to violation of CGSRC Rules or Policies.

Grounds Rules

Bike riders will dismount before entering front gate and walk bikes to racks.

Skate boards, roller blades, and roller skates are not allowed on CGSRC parking lot, sidewalks, or pool deck.

No smoking is allowed on CGSRC grounds, including the parking lot.

No pets are allowed at CGSRC.

Member parking is allowed in the CGSRC parking lot or on city streets.

The area immediately in front of the clubhouse is an emergency vehicle zone and shall be kept free of vehicles.

Chairs and wagons used by members shall be put back after use.

Members and visitors shall pick up and deposit their trash and recycling in the proper containers.

CGSRC does not allow portable cooking or catering equipment except with prior approval from the Board or Social Director. This includes, but is not limited to, barbeques, deep fryers, and smokers. The CGST is authorized to use portable barbecues during home swim meets for their snack bar.

Snack Bar

The Snack Bar can only be operated by an adult CGSRC member volunteer with prior approval of a CGSRC Board member.

The Snack Bar does not allow "tabs" or IOUs.

Pool Rules

- All persons must rinse off in the showers before entering the pool
- Children who are not potty-trained must be in swim diapers or pull ups
- Underwear is not allowed to be worn as a swimsuit
- Children under 5 must be accompanied by an adult in the water who is within arm reach
- Children who cannot swim must be accompanied by an adult in the water who is within arm reach
- Children who are wearing "floaties" must be accompanied by an adult in the water who is within arm reach
- No pushing, wrestling, hitting, fighting, dunking, or spitting
- No person or lifeguard with diarrhea, stomach flu, skin infections or open sores is allowed in the pool. Pursuant to state law, diarrhea must be inactive for <u>14 days</u>
- No floatation devices or pool toys are allowed in the pools, except for CGSRC sponsored events or by permission of the Pool Manager
- No glass is allowed in the pools or pool area
- No diving in areas marked "no diving"
- A swimmer may be required to pass a swim test before he/she is allowed in the pool. Lifeguards will require a test of all swimmers unless the guard has personal knowledge of the individual's swimming ability
- Lifeguards must require any non-swimmer without supervision in the water to leave the pool

Diving Board Rules

- Lifeguards will assess the swimmer's ability and confidence in the water before allowing him/her on the board and determine whether a particular individual shall be permitted to use the board
- People must be 51 inches or 4'3" to go off the high dive. This is as tall as the 4th ladder step
- Only one person allowed on diving board at any time
- Non-swimmers or one who does not pass a swim test may not use the diving board
- Any swimmer that has to exit the high dive by climbing down the ladder will not be allowed back on that diving board unless approved by the Pool Manager or Head Lifeguard on duty
- No persons wearing floatation devices are allowed on the diving boards
- No persons wearing goggles are allowed on the diving board
- Divers waiting for their turn are not allowed on the ladder and must remain on the ground
- Divers must go straight off the board; diving to the side is forbidden
- No reverse, backwards or inward dives allowed
- No multiple bounces or spending an inordinate amount of time on the board.
- After entering the water, the diver must exit the area immediately high dive to the left ladder, low dive to the right ladder
- No swimming allowed in diving area

The CGSRC Lifeguards on duty may temporarily expel any member or non-member from use of the pools or diving boards due to violation of these rules.

Kid Swim and Adult Swim

"Kid Swim" takes place at the top of the hour for 45 minutes (e.g., 1:00-1:45 pm, 3:00-3:45 pm) and for a full 60 minutes between 5:00-6:00 pm. People of all ages are allowed in the pool during this time.

Adult swim takes place on the 45 of every hour for 15 mins (e.g., 1:45 - 2:00; 3:45 - 4:00, etc.) and for a full 60 minutes between 6:00 - 7:00 pm. No person under 18 is allowed in the pool during adult swim. Exceptions to this include:

- Non-swimmers who are receiving swim lessons from a parent or off-duty CGSRC lifeguard that has prior approval from the CGSRC Board, pool manager, or head lifeguard on duty.
 - Lessons shall be confined to the north-east corner of the pool (by the steps) in order to avoid interfering with lap swim. The parent/guardian or swim instructor must be in the pool simultaneously and remain within arm reach of the swimmer.
- If the pool manager or head lifeguard on duty offers permission.

Clubhouse Rules

Members may use the club house, its kitchen appliances & tools, and TV, except when it is being used by a rental party.

Clubhouse or kitchen must be cleaned after use (chairs and tables put away, kitchen cleaned, TV and all electronic devices off, etc.). Utensils, tools, gadgets, serving ware, etc., must be cleaned after use and returned to the appropriate cabinet/drawer.

Children are only allowed in the clubhouse with an adult.

Barbeque Area

The barbecue area is for the use of members and their guests.

Barbecue fires are allowed only in the brick barbecues provided. No portable barbecues are allowed without prior approval of the CGSRC Board or Social Director.

CGSRC provides charcoal and lighter fluid to members. Lifeguards will supply lighter fluid or matches only to adults.

CGSRC does not provide barbecue supplies to non-member rental parties.

To avoid injury and/or fire, briquette chimneys or other hot tools/appliances shall be left on the top of the brick barbeques and not placed on the ground.

Volleyball Sand Court

Lifeguards do not supervise or referee volleyball games or activities. Parents need to supervise their children when they are on the sand court.

Volleyballs may be borrowed from the lifeguard desk for use at the volleyball court

No hanging on the volleyball nets

No throwing sand

After being on the volleyball sand court, all people must rinse off before entering any pool.

The lifeguards may limit or restrict use of the volleyball sand court.

Play Structure, Swings, Sport Court, and Horseshoes

Lifeguards do not supervise the play structure, swings, sport court, or horseshoes. Parents need to supervise their children when they are in, on, or utilizing this equipment.

The lifeguards may limit or restrict use of the play structure, swings and horse shoe area.

Tennis Court Rules

Lifeguards do not supervise the tennis courts. Parents need to supervise their children when they are utilizing the courts.

Tennis court is available 12 months a year to members and hours are 7:00 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.

Members may request a gate key to the tennis court from the Board. Unauthorized duplication of key or sharing the key with non-members is not allowed and may result in suspension of membership.

Play must be limited to one hour while others are waiting.

If all courts are in use, members desiring to play must sign up with the lifeguards and be on the grounds when their name is called or they will be deleted from the waiting list and the next person in line will be called.

Guests are permitted on the courts with playing members only after guest fees have been paid and liability waiver has been submitted.

Reservations for court use are made only for tournaments, round robins, and lessons coordinated through the Board.

Members are their guests shall keep all bikes, skateboards, skates, pets, etc. off the playing area and fenced area.

Eating and drinking are not allowed on the tennis courts.

The lifeguards may limit or restrict use of the tennis courts.

SWIM LESSONS

CGSRC-Offered Swim Lessons

Group swim lessons for non-swimming children is a service provided to CGSRC members on a first-come, first-served basis. Group lessons availability will be announced by the CGSRC Board and all lessons will be scheduled by the Pool Manager. No lesson shall occur without prior scheduling by the Pool Manager.

Private Lessons

The CG pool may only be used for private lessons in the following instances:

- 1. CG Gator Swim Team employees between 12:00 and 1:00 p.m., Monday-Friday during the summer swim team season.
- 2. Off-duty CGSRC lifeguards during adult swim. This is limited to teaching members only. Lessons to non-members or guests of members is not allowed. The arrangement is between the lifeguard and the swimmer's parent/guardian but any lessons must have prior approval from the CGSRC Board or Pool Manager.
- 3. Prior Agreement with the CGSRC Board.

CGSRC RENTALS AND PARTIES

The CGSRC Club House, pools, and grounds may be rented for social events by both members and non-members. Availability is on a first come, first-serve basis with receipt of completed contract and required payments.

Fees for parties and rentals are established by the CGSRC Board. The most current version of approved fees is on the CGSRC website.

Parties with more than 100 guests need to contact the Social Director for costs.

The Club encourages individuals or organizations to offer workshops, lessons, or works to CGSRC members. People interested should contact CGSRC Marketing Director.

Guidelines, Requirements and Limitations on Social Events

CGSRC lifeguards are required to be present for social event rentals. For social event rentals during regularly closed hours and seasons, the number of guards and hours is determined according to the particulars of the event and the renter is responsible for these fees. The CGSRC Social Director will help coordinate the hiring of lifeguards and collection of the associated fee.

As a guide, the average requirement is 1 lifeguard per 30 guests (combo of swimmer and non-swimmer) BUT the number of guards required may vary based upon the particulars of the event.

Security guards are required to be present for parties serving alcohol. A security guard will need to be hired and the renter will need to pay the fee. The CGSRC Social Director will help coordinate the hiring of a security guard and collection of the fee.

In the summer season, party rentals are limited to members only and must end/be cleaned up by 9:00 pm.

CGSRC has designated party areas—by tree on south east corner by south gate; on lawn in front of east barbeques; and by sport court near north barbeques. Parties in earlier time slots will need to leave promptly at their end time if there is a follow-on party. Lifeguards will remind party organizers when they check in.

Parties will have individual guest sign in sheets and liability waivers are required for all party guests, swimming and non-swimming.

Rental parties are allowed to use the barbeques however CGSRC does not provide barbecue supplies to non-member rental parties.

CGSRC does not allow portable cooking or catering equipment without prior approval from the Board. This includes, but is not limited to, barbeques, deep fryers, and smokers.

CGSRC does not allow inflatable bounce houses and water slides or dunk tanks without prior approval from the Board or Social Director.

Parties must leave the conditions of the CGSRC in the same manner in which they found them or the deposit will be forfeited.

Party rental reservations cannot be transferred from a member to a non-member. Any such transfer will not be honored by CGSRC.

School Rentals

Reservation or rental requests from schools for end of year school celebrations, should be emailed to the CGSRC Social Director. Reservations are accepted beginning January 1 for same year events.

Depending on date availability and school size, multiple schools may need to share the facilities.

At the beginning of a school event, lifeguards will discuss club rules, pool safety, and perform swim tests. Wrist bands will be used to identify those that can swim one length of the pool at school parties and can be allowed in pool.

A child at a school party that does not pass or take the swim test is not allowed in the pool.

CGSRC-Sponsored Events

Throughout the year, the CGSRC Board will schedule social events, fundraisers, camps and/or workshops. Social events are not guaranteed to happen every year and may have associated fees or limitations. The CGSRC Board has full discretion over limits, fees, and costs associated with the event.

An annual club event calendar shall be reviewed and approved by the CGSRC Board. Once approved, it shall be posted on the CGSRC website.

CGSRC BOARD AND CLUB MANAGEMENT

Board Member Eligibility, Terms, and Member Voting Rights

The CGSRC Bylaws offer details on the number of directors, eligibility, terms, calling of meetings, and voting rights. The Bylaws also details when CGSRC Board may amend the bylaws and when a membership vote is required for approval. Please refer to the bylaws for this information. The Bylaws can be found on the CGSRC website.

The CGSRC Board shall not have more than two directors who are simultaneously members of the CGST Advisory Committee.

Board Meetings

The monthly meeting dates and times of the CGSRC shall be determined by the CGSRC Board after the annual election of new directors. The meeting dates will be posted to the CGSRC website.

CGSRC Board agendas shall be posted to the CGSRC website a minimum of five (5) calendar days prior or to the meeting.

CGSRC Board minutes will be posted to the website after approval. Conclusions of any closed session votes shall also be reported unless it is inappropriate to share information with membership and public (e.g., relate to a specific member, legal issue, or personnel issue).

Conflicts of Interest

A CGSRC Board Member must recuse themselves from any votes that would financially benefit their family or a member of their household.

A CGSRC Board Member who is also on the CGST Advisory Committee may not vote on items pertaining to CGST.

Chain of Command

The CGSRC Bylaws defines Board succession for conducting business. However, the Board shall establish a chain-of command to respond to daily circumstances during normal CGSRC operation.

Board Positions and Responsibilities

Specific duties of each position will vary according to the directors chosen by the membership. The following are the general duties for the CGSRC Board Directors:

President

- Preside at meetings
- Distribute and track keys to CGSRC property
- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Vice President

- Hire and manage pool manager/ lifeguards
- Maintain adequate insurance
- Transmit pool manager/lifeguards work time to ADP
- Update and maintain CGSRC Employee Handbook, including posting updated version on website in November
- If President is absent, preside at meetings
- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Secretary

- Draft board meeting agendas and post on CGSRC website prior to board meeting.
- Take minutes of board meeting discussion, action, and votes. Propose minutes for adoption, have posted on website, and maintain a Book of Minutes for CGSRC
- Draft and send to members a CGSRC newsletter
- Update and maintain CGSRC Policies and Procedures Manual, including posting updated version on website
- If President and Vice President are absent, preside at meetings
- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Treasurer

- Maintain books of account. This includes books/records of accounts of the CGSRC properties and transactions. This book shall be open to review by any Board Member
- Deposit and disburse money and valuables
- Draft and propose an annual budget to CGSRC Board for review and vote
- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Social Director

- Book rental parties and coordinate lifeguards and/or security
- Oversee social rental contracts, including enforcement of rules, cleanup/damage, and fee collections
- Keep calendar of CGSRC up to date
- Coordinate with Pool Manager regarding all scheduled rentals
- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Membership

- Maintain records of new, active and inactive members
- Maintains wait list
- Sell memberships and coordinate with Treasurer regarding fees and dues
- Track member volunteer hours

- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Marketing/Program Director

- Coordinate club-sponsored social events and programs
- Coordinate with Pool Manager regarding all scheduled functions
- Ensure appropriate condition of facilities after functions
- Prepare short and long-range marketing plans
- Implement activities and programs in the adopted marketing plan which pertains to marketing responsibilities
- Coordinate social media advertising and messaging
- Advertise and promote availability of memberships
- Prepare and revise as necessary membership brochure
- Survey membership as necessary and compile questionnaire results
- Develop and oversee CGSRC program and activities, including volleyball, basketball, swim lessons, and tennis
 activities
- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Operations

- Oversee scheduled and emergency maintenance
- Oversee maintenance activities of Pool Manager/Life Guards
- Coordinate with Vice President concerning pool management activities
- Serve as Board Liaison with contracted vendors relative to repairs and supplies
- Enter into necessary general maintenance contracts with consensus or ratification of the Board
- Assist with club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

Member at Large

- Manages snack bar volunteer schedule
- Orders and ensure delivery of club supplies and items for snack bar
- Assist with training of lifeguards and communication of expectations
- Assist with all club sponsored social events
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

CGSRC Financial and Operations

The fiscal year for CGSRC is January 1 to December 31.

Condensed financial report shall be submitted monthly at Board meetings by the Treasurer. QuickBooks software is used to track budget and tax filing.

An annual budget shall be proposed by the Treasurer and approved by the Board.

Board Approval of Purchases

Board members must secure Board approval for any purchase over \$2000. This \$2000 limit is an aggregate total of all purchases by a Board member for supplies needed to conduct their board duties or special duties as directed by the Board. All purchases will count toward this total until the Board member is reimbursed by the Board through the Treasurer.

Notwithstanding the \$2000 spending authority, Board members are encouraged to seek prior Board consensus for any significant expenditure.

The Treasurer will not reimburse any Board member for incurred expenses unless the member has submitted the Expense Reimbursement Form.

President, Treasurer, and Secretary have authority to sign checks.

The Board will not reimburse a non-Board member for any unapproved purchases. If a member wants to purchase an item for CGSRC, the item may be donated or the purchase must be approved by a majority vote of the Board before purchase.

Loans and Debt

Pursuant to the CGSRC Bylaws, any loan/indebtedness over \$50,000 requires a vote of membership.

Insurance

Pursuant to the CGSRC Bylaws, the CGSRC Board authorizes the purchase and maintenance of an insurance policy, policies, or bond on behalf of its directors, officers or employees against any liabilities. Insurance policy, policies or bond shall be presented to the CGSRC Board by the Vice-President and approved with a majority vote.

Emergency Repairs

A CGSRC board member may authorize services to respond to an emergency situation or mitigate damage.

Garbage Pick Up

During the summer season, garbage pickup will be twice per week. During the off-season garbage pickup needs will be determined by the Board.

Vendors

A list of current vendors for CGSRC is maintained by the Board. This list shall be shared with all current board members and the pool manager upon appointment or hiring.

After the election of a new board, a representative of the CGSRC Board shall contact the companies and update the names of authorized persons.

CGSRC EMPLOYEES

CGSRC has an employee handbook that includes policies, procedures, rules, code of conduct, discipline processes, and expectations of CGSRC employees. This handbook will be available on the CGSRC website. For specific personnel questions, please contact the Pool Manager, Vice President, or CGSRC Board.

The CGSRC Board shall annually approve the pay structure for lifeguards.

A list of employees shall be maintained by the Pool Manager and shared with all directors of the CGSRC Board.

COLLEGE GREENS GATOR SWIM TEAM

The College Greens Swim Team (CGST) offers members' children an opportunity to compete in a recreational swim league.

The CGST Advisory Committee is responsible for the management, operation, finances and function of the CGST. A resolution between CGSRC and the CGST Advisory Committee details the election of the CGST Advisory Committee members, committee member duties, meetings, requirements, and finances. This resolution can be found on the CGSRC website.

The CGST Advisory Committee to CGSRC is composed of 11 voting members who are members of the CGSRC in good standing and have children on CGST. The members of the CGST Advisory Committee are chosen by election of CGST families.

The CGST Advisory Committee will appoint one person to attend CGSRC Board meetings and act as a liaison with the CGSRC Board.

The CGST Advisory Committee will provide oversight of CGST events and activities to ensure compliance with CGSRC rules.

The CGST Advisory Committee is responsible for hiring of its employees and ensuring committee members fulfill their duties. CGSRC and CGST Advisory Committee will work together so both can operate smoothly and efficiently.

The CGST Advisory Committee shall reimburse CGSRC for any expenses that are solely for the benefit of the CG Swim Team. This includes pool heating costs during spring and fall swim clinics.

The CGSRC and CGST Advisory Committee shall hold two joint meetings per year. Meetings should be held before and after CG Swim Team season.

CGSRC Member Swimmer Eligibility

CGST is open to members' children or members of their household between the ages of 4 and 18.

As CGST uses the CGSRC pool free of charge, participation on the team is primarily available to CGSRC members, with a limited number of spots for non-members.

Non-CGSRC Member Swimmer Eligibility

CGST Advisory Committee may add up to 50 swimmers to CGST who are not members of CGSRC. Use of CGSRC pool and facilities for these 50 swimmers is limited to only during CGST swim team practices, meets, and events.

CGST Advisory Committee shall annually pay CGSRC a facility and pool use fee for swimmers who are not members of CGSRC. CGSRC will determine the facility and pool fee by January 31 of each year and notify the CGST Advisory Committee.

If this policy is amended or repealed, CGST swimmers, who are not members of CGSRC at the time of amendment or repeal, shall be allowed to remain a swimmer with CGST until they age out.

CGST Advisory Committee shall include the CGSRC wait list when they market to existing CGSRC members.

Authorization and Conditions to Use Pool and Facilities

The CGST is authorized to use the pool during the CGST season and for specific events after the season. All CGST events, activities, and meets will be scheduled with the Social Director to avoid conflicts.

Swim Practice

The CGST has exclusive use of the pool for CGST practice during limited hours when the pool is closed to the members. The CGST's use of the pool must be consistent with CGSRC policies and procedures, including the CGSRC guest policy. The CGST Advisory Committee will discuss any requested exceptions to CGSRC policy with the CGSRC Board.

The CGST season extends from the first day of CGST practice until the Meet of Champions. CGST Advisory Committee may also coordinate spring and fall swim clinics with the CGSRC Board. CGST Advisory Committee must share the CGST season dates with the CGSRC prior to February 1.

Specifically, the CGST will have access to the pool the following weekday hours:

DATE	BEGIN SETUP	FINISH CLEANUP	SWIM LESSONS
05/01 - 06/14	3:00PM	7:30PM	
06/15- 07/27	6:00AM	12:00	12:00-1:00

The CGST is authorized by the CGSRC Board to use CGSRC facilities subject to the following conditions and rules:

- Follow CGSRC rules as defined in the CGSRC Bylaws, this policy manual, and recent CGSRC Board minutes.
- Use the pool within its defined period or secure prior authorization for additional use.
- Split the cost of Health Department inspection for food service.
- Pick up trash and clean up bathrooms after each practice and home swim meet. The specific expectations will be communicated from CGSRC Board.
- Remove all CGST equipment (lane lines, starting blocks, kick boards, public address system, etc.) after CGST
 use of the pool and before CGSRC opens to members or social events.
- Put away all tables, chairs, and barbecues used by the CGST.

- CGST swimmers and their families are not to use the sport court, sand areas, club house, ping pong table, or foosball table during CGST practices. Children may use the play structure during swim practice hours with supervision.
- Sports court is only to be used for dryland practice and is not to be used for playing before the club opens for the day.
- The CGSRC Board Member who is the swim team liaison will input or ensure swim team date and information is added to CGSRC website calendar.
- CGST Advisory Committee will cover cost of extra garbage pick-up when there are multiple swim meets in a three-day span.
- CGST owns and shall use the shed on the west side of the CGSRC for swim team use and storage.

Swim Meets

During scheduled home swim meets, the CGST will have use of the pool from 6:00 am to 1:30 PM. The pool will open to the membership on home meet days at 2:00 PM. The use of the pool outside these hours must be previously arranged with the CGSRC Board. The CGSRC Board understands that events may arise that require temporarily extending the CGST hours and therefore will make all efforts to be available to CGST representatives to arrange extensions.

The CGST must be able to respond to accidents, emergency situations, and safety concerns that may occur during swim meets and practice. Therefore, the CGST Advisory Committee will provide two lifeguards at all home swim meets and at practice sessions or special swimming events. These lifeguards must possess the same lifeguard and first aid certifications as CGSRC lifeguards.

The CGST Advisory Committee will provide proof of the lifeguard and first aid certification to CGSRC prior to the start of spring clinics or CGST first practice. The CGST may choose to use CGSRC lifeguards and reimburse CGSRC for cost of all salary expense. The use of CGSRC lifeguards must be coordinated with the Vice President so CGSRC can coordinate lifeguard schedules.

Fall and Spring Swim Clinics

CGST may offer swim clinics for swimmers in the fall and spring. The CGST Advisory Committee must submit details of clinics (dates, number, swimmer eligibility, cost, etc.) and receive prior approval of CGSRC Board. As part of the approval, the swim team will incur the costs of maintaining chemicals for/heating of pool when it is solely being used by CGST.

Clinics will be on weekdays when the club would normally be closed.

Snack Bar and Barbecue

The CGST Advisory Committee may operate a snack bar during home swim meets. This function is independent of the snack bar operated by the CGSRC Board during regular CGSRC hours.

The CGST is responsible for set-up and closing of its snack bar and will clean the area used for the snack bar.

The CGST may use two barbecues in the grass area between the pump house and club house during home swim meets for their snack bar. The CGST will provide at least one person at the barbecues at all times and assure that the fires are out before leaving the area.

APPENDIX A - EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT FORM

EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT FORM
Name:
Position:
Date:
Amount:
Payee:
Purpose:
Deard approval received (if ever ¢E00)2
Board approval received (if over \$500)?
Attach receipts
Account Cocipes